
 MINUTES
MID-YEAR BUDGET RETREAT

LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
LINCOLN-LANCASTER COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
3140 N STREET, LOWER LEVEL CONFERENCE ROOM

THURSDAY, JANUARY 30, 2014
8:00 A.M.

County Commissioners Present: Larry Hudkins, Chair; Brent Smoyer, Vice Chair; Deb
Schorr; Jane Raybould and Roma Amundson

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer; Gwen Thorpe, Deputy Chief
Administrative Officer and Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Interim
Administrator; Dennis Meyer, Budget & Fiscal Officer; Liz Thanel, Accountant in the
Budget and Fiscal Office; Pat Condon, Chief Deputy County Attorney; Doug Cyr, Chief
Administrative Deputy County Attorney; Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney; Joe
Nigro, Deputy Public Defender; Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy Sheriff; Pam Dingman,
County Engineer; Andy Stebbing, County Treasurer; Bill Jarrett, Chief Deputy County
Treasurer; Michelle Raphael, Accountant/Auditor, County Treasurer’s Office; Troy Hawk,
Clerk of the District Court; Jennifer Kulwicki, District Court Administrator; Kim Etherton,
Community Corrections Director; Mike Thurber, Corrections Director; Sheli Schindler,
Youth Services Center (YSC) Director; Annette Thompson, Youth Services Center (YSC)
Deputy Director; Melissa Hood, Administrative Aide, YSC; Scott Etherton, Crisis Center
Director; Sue Eckley, County Risk Manager; Kit Boesch, Human Services Administrator;
Sara Hoyle, Juvenile Justice Coordinator; Lori Griggs, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer;
Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director; Steve
Henderson, Chief Information Officer, Information Services (IS); Dan Nolte, County
Clerk; Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office; Ann Post, Director of Policy and Research for
the Lincoln Independent Business Association (LIBA); Kevin Abourezk, Lincoln Journal
Star Newspaper

Advance public notice of the Mid-Year Budget Retreat was posted on the County-
City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on January 28, 2014.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
8:05 a.m.

Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director,
welcomed those in attendance to the Health Department.

Page 1



 1) MID-YEAR BUDGET REVIEW - Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer 

A. Mid-Year Status of Revenues and Expenditures

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, gave an overview of the following documents:

• County Tax Levy (10 Year History) (Page 2-1)

Meyer noted the tax levy for Fiscal Year (FY) 2012-2013 was 28.43 cents when the
Board shifted 1.6 cents of the Railroad Transportation Safety District’s (RTSD’s) levy to
the County.  That dropped to 1.3 cents in FY 2013-2014 resulting in a tax levy of 28.13
cents.  He said the RTSD levy will likely come into play again during the budget
discussions.  NOTE: The RTSD’s balance at December 31, 2013 was $10,900,000. 
Hudkins inquired about major projects that will have to be funded.  Schorr said the
RTSD will be asked to make a funding commitment of $13,700,000 over the next three
to five years for the South Beltway project.  Smoyer added the project won’t start until
2018 and said the RTSD typically doesn’t pay out until the project is completed.

Raybould arrived at the meeting at 8:11 a.m.

• % Increase in Valuation (10 Year History) (Page 2-1)
• County Property Tax (10 Year History) (Page 2-2)
• % Increase in Property Tax (Page 2-2)
• Lancaster County, 2013-2014 Tax Levy Information, Total Tax Levy =

$2.020638 Per $100 of Valuation (City of Lincoln Resident) (Page 2-3)
• FY 2013-2014 Projected Revenues for Lancaster County (Property Tax

Funds Only) (Page 2-4)
• Total Budget of Expenditures-10 Year History (Page 2-5)
• Lancaster County, Budgeted Disbursements by Function (Page 2-6)
• Lancaster County, Report of Obligations Versus Budget - December 31,

2013, Percent of Fiscal Year Remaining - 50% (Page 2-7)
• Lancaster County, Report of Obligations Versus Budget - December 31,

2013, Percent of Fiscal Year Remaining - 50% (Page 2-8)
• Lancaster County, Comparison of Obligations Through December, FY

2014 Compared to FY 2013 (Page 2-9)

Meyer said the reduction in expenditures for General Assistance ($311,610) is
misleading because payments have not been remitted to the Lincoln-Lancaster County
Health Department for the Health Clinic contract.  He said the Grants Fund and Jail
Savings Fund also show significant differences, $1,029,958 and $292,571, respectively,
but said they are related to the timing of activity.

Page 2



Meyer also expressed concern regarding employee insurance costs, noting an increase
of $1,256,929 above last year. 

• Lancaster County, Payroll Costs Compared to Budget - December 31,
2013, Percent of Days Remaining - 49.43% (Page 2-10)

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Payroll Through December, FY 2014
Compared to FY 2013 (Pages 2-11 and 2-12)

Meyer noted that the 8.10% increase in the Officials Salary is because the Crisis Center
Director was moved into that line item from Regular Salaries.

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Payroll Costs, FY 2013 Compared to
FY 2012 (Pages 2-13 and 2-14)

Meyer explained that the 31.64% increase in the Election Commissioner line item is
related to the number of elections held. 

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Payroll Costs, FY 2013, FY 2012, FY
2011, and FY 2010 (Pages 2-15 and 2-16)

Meyer said the Post Employment Health line item reflects payouts for retirements.  He
projected that amount will increase this fiscal year as a number of Community Mental
Health Center (CMHC) employees have retired. 

• Lancaster County, Overtime by County Agency Compared to Budget -
December 31, 2013, Percent of Year Remaining - 49.43% (Page 2-17)

• Lancaster County, Report of Revenues Versus Budgeted - December
31, 2013, Percent of Fiscal Year Remaining - 50% (Page 2-18)

Meyer noted inheritance tax collections are down by approximately $1,000,000 and said
the County has relied on that revenue.  He said Medicaid/Medicare/MRO are down in
part to the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) being behind in billings and a slow
down in activities.

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Actual Revenues, FY 2014 Compared
to FY 2013 (Page 2-19)

• Change in Consumer Price Index (CPI-U), 1989 to 2013 (Page 2-20)
• Lancaster County, Change in Unused Budget Carryforward Authority

(Page 2-21)
• Lancaster County, Year End Fund Balances from Budgets (Pages 2-22

and 2-23)
• Lancaster County, Non-Mandated County Services (Page 2-24)

Page 3



B. County General Fund

Meyer discussed the following documents (see Exhibit A):

• General Fund, Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July 1, 2013
Through December 31, 2013 (Page 3-1)

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Budgeted Revenues (Business Unit
No. 9999), FY 2014 Compared to FY 2013 (Page 3-2)

• Lancaster County, Comparison of Actual Revenues (Business Unit No.
9999), FY 2014 Compared to FY 2013 (Page 3-3)

Meyer noted last year the Board decided to no longer have Corrections reimburse the
General Fund for indirect costs ($184,299).

• Lancaster County, Comparison of General Fund Revenues (Pages 3-4
and 3-5)

Meyer explained Homestead is split out as an actual number but is built into the
Property Tax line item for budgeting purposes.

• Lancaster County, Inheritance Tax Collections (Pages 3-6 and 3-7)
• Lancaster County, Register of Deeds Fees (Pages 3-8 and 3-9)
• Interest Income Comparison, Lancaster County (Page 3-10)
• Lancaster County Boarding Contracts, Juvenile Court, FY 2004 to FY

2013 Actual Cost (Page 3-11)
• Indigent Defense Costs (Pages 3-12 and 3-13)
• General Assistance (Page 3-14)

Meyer said it is projected that revenues will be $200,000 less.

• Lancaster County, Comparison of General Fund (Actual), FY 2013, FY
2012, FY 2011, FY 2010 and FY 2009 (Page 3-15)

Meyer said the fluxuation in the Board of Equalization (BOE) line item is reflective of 
whether or not it is a property revaluation year.  The increase in the Data Processing
line item is related to the County Treasurer’s new property tax system.

• Lancaster County, Comparison of General Fund (Budget), FY 2014, FY
2013, FY 2012, FY 2011 and FY 2010 (Page 3-16)

Page 4



C. Other County Funds

Meyer reviewed the following documents:

• Workers’ Compensation (Fund 12), Statement of Revenue and
Expenditures, July 1, 2013 Through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-1)

• Lancaster County, Workers’ Compensation Fund (Fund 12) (Page 4-2)

Meyer said he will need to transfer $500,000 from the Lancaster Manor Fund into the
Workers’ Compensation Fund to offset costs. 

• Other Self Insurance (Fund 13), Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures, July 1, 2013 Through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-3)

• Lancaster County, Other Self Insurance Fund (Fund 13) ( Page 4-4)
• General Liability Funding (Page 4-5)
• Other Self Insurance Loss Fund (Fund 13) (Page 4-6)

Meyer indicated plans to transfer $300,000 from the Lancaster Manor Fund to build up
the fund balances, noting the funds will be divided as follows: $50,000 into Inland
Marine (Line Item 9582) and $250,000 into the County Sheriff’s Pursuit Liability (Line
Item 9570).

• Group Insurance (Fund 14), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures,
July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-7)

• Lancaster County, Group Insurance Fund (Fund 14) (Page 4-8)
• County Share of Health Insurance (Page 4-9) 
• County Share of Dental Insurance (Page 4-10)
• Visitors Improvement Fund (Fund 18), Statement of Revenues and

Expenditures, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-11)
• Visitors Improvement Fund (Fund 18) Breakdown (Pages 4-12 and 4-

13)
• Visitors Promotion Fund (Fund 19), Statement of Revenues and

Expenditures, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-14)
• Library (Fund 20), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July 1,

2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-15)
• Bridge and Road (Fund 21), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures,

July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-16)
• Highway Fund (Fund 22), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures,

July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-17)
• Veterans Aid (Fund 26), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July

1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-18)
• Grants (Fund 27), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July 1,

2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-19)

Page 5



• Keno (Fund 28), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July 1,
2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-20)

Meyer said he has not made the $1,000,000 transfer from the Keno Fund to the
General Fund yet.

• Lancaster County, Keno Collections (Page 4-21)
• Economic Development (Fund 30), Statement of Revenues and

Expenditures, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-22)
• Debt Service (Fund 41), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July

1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-23)
• Lancaster County, Nebraska, Bonds Outstanding at June 30, 2013

(Page 4-24)
• Building Fund (Fund 51), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures,

July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-25)
• Lancaster County, Building Fund Budget (Fund 51) (Page 4-26)

Meyer said Don Killeen, County Property Manager, asked whether further action is
needed to allow the Public Building Commission (PBC) to move forward with renovation
of the former jail facility (now known as the 605 Building).  There was consensus to
move ahead with Phase I.

• Jail Savings Fund (Fund 52), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures,
July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-27)

Meyer said the Jail Savings fund is set up for capital outlay items and can be used to
offset the Corrections budget. 

• Manor (Fund 61), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, July 1,
2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-28)

• Community Mental Health Center, Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures, December 31, 2013 (Page 4-29)

• Community Mental Health Center (Excluding Crisis Center), Statement
of Revenues and Expenditures, December 31, 2013 (Page 4-30)

• Crisis Center, Statement of Revenues and Expenditures, December 31,
2013 (Page 4-31)

• Weed Control Fund (Fund 64), Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-32)

• County/City Property Management (Fund 65), Statement of Revenues
and Expenditures, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-
33)

• Property Management (Fund 66), Statement of Revenues and
Expenditures, July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-34)

• City Maintenance (Fund 67), Statement of Revenues and Expenditures,
July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013 (Page 4-35)

Page 6



D. Letters from Agencies

Meyer gave an overview of the following documents:

• Lancaster County, FY 2014 Projected Additional Appropriations

Veterans Service

Meyer said an additional appropriation request of $7,000 was submitted for Veterans
Service after the document was prepared.

County Sheriff

Jeff Bliemeister, Chief Deputy Sheriff, discussed his department’s additional
appropriation request ($187,873), noting a $38,878 shortfall in overtime and training
will be reimbursed through grants.  He also indicated the Sheriff’s Office anticipates at
least two retirements in the coming year, noting one will likely retire around July 1,
2014.  Bliemeister said the next academy class begins in April, 2014 and the Sheriff’s
Office would like to hire a replacement in advance of the retirement so the new hire
can attend the class.  That would put the department one full-time equivalent (FTE)
above their allotment for approximately two months at an additional cost of $13,839.

Schorr asked what the mid-year adjustment for the Sheriff’s Office was last year. 
Meyer thought it was around $230,000.  Bliemeister attributed a large portion of that
amount to Post Employment Health Plan (PEHP) benefits.  Meyer reminded the Board
that the Sheriff’s Office also has a 6.53% increase in health insurance for deputies. 

Corrections

Mike Thurber, Corrections Director, projected that his department will stay under
budget, noting they are no longer paying for indirect costs out of the budget.  

Thurber also requested authorization to move ahead with hiring a maintenance position
that had been deferred, noting warranties at the new Lancaster County Adult Detention
Facility (LCADF) are expired and the maintenance staff is now responsible for all the
maintenance and repairs.  He said they will be looking for an electrician or someone
with heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) experience.  Raybould asked
whether the department could contract out for those services.  Thurber said they are
working with the District Energy Corporation (DEC), which is supplying the geothermal
energy plant that heats, cools and provides backup power to the facility.  He said they
only have three maintenance positions for the facility and grounds and really need an
additional person.

Page 7



Schorr noted Corrections’ overtime costs have been high and asked whether he sees
that decreasing.  Thurber said he hopes they can maintain at the current level,
explaining staffing is “tight” and they must fill in with on-calls and overtime.  He added
they are under budget on the on-call line item. 

Schorr asked the cost difference between on-calls and overtime.  Thurber said overtime
averages $25.00 to $28.00 per hour and on-calls are $17.00 per hour.

Election Commission

Meyer said the Election Commissioner has requested $300,000, primarily due to the 
Lincoln Public Schools (LPS) Special Election, estimating that $275,000 to $280,000 will
be reimbursed.

Courts

Meyer said the additional appropriations requested by the County, District and Juvenile
Courts are related to legal services costs and said those amounts are relatively low
compared to previous years.

Youth Services Center (YSC)

Sheli Schindler, YSC Director, noted employees represented by the American Federation
of State, County & Municipal Employees (AFSCME) received an increase and back pay
last year as a result of a Commission of Industrial Relations (CIR) ruling.  She said they
are currently in the middle of labor negotiations so they are not able to determine the
impact to the budget yet.  Schindler said they are also assessing whether it would be
better to increase the number of on-calls or to hire more FTE’s to provide court-ordered
transports.  She said it may also be necessary to add another billing position.

Schindler also discussed mental health services.  She noted the County pays the Child
Guidance Center approximately $65,000.00 for internal case management and
evaluation services at YSC.  The Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) had provided
after-hours coverage but that coverage will end January 31, 2014.  Schindler said they
were able to work out a cooperative agreement with Blue Valley Behavioral Health for 
after hours screening and assessment on an on-call, as-needed basis for the remainder
of the fiscal year (estimated cost of $6,200).  Schorr asked Schindler whether she
approached Lutheran Family Services (LFS) about provided that coverage.  NOTE: LFS
is taking over CMHC’s core services (outpatient counseling, day treatment, community
support and medication management).  Schindler said she has not, although she did
speak to CenterPointe and they were not interested.  NOTE: CenterPointe is taking
over the day rehabilitation services, psychiatric residential rehabilitation services and
the 24-hour Crisis Line from CMHC.  She said she is comfortable working with Blue
Valley Behavioral Health because it does the Targeted Adult Service Coordination
(TASC) Program (crisis response) for adults.

Page 8



Smoyer exited the meeting at 9:55 a.m.

MOTION: Amundson moved and Raybould seconded to move forward with
development of a contract with Blue Valley Behavioral Health, as outlined. 
Amundson, Raybould, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye.  Smoyer was absent
from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 2) BREAK

The meeting was recessed at 10:05 a.m. 

Smoyer returned to the meeting at 10:20 a.m.

The meeting resumed at 10:22 a.m.

 3) YOUTH SERVICES CENTER (YSC) PER DIEM - Sheli Schindler, Youth
Services Center (YSC) Director

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, presented per diem options (see
Exhibit A). 

Hudkins asked Schindler for her recommendation.  Schindler said it was thought fewer
youth would go into detention as a result of Legislative Bill (LB) 561 (Changed
provisions and transferred responsibilities regarding the juvenile justice system) so 
detention costs would go down so counties would be able to move those monies to pay
for alternatives to detention.  She said experience is limited but so far costs have
increased.  Schindler felt the County should move to a per diem of $304 (Option 2).  
Hudkins asked whether that rate would prompt the State to take youth to another
facility.  Schindler said it is difficult to predict. 

Hudkins asked Schindler whether she thought Douglas and Sarpy County would follow
the County’s lead in moving to a higher per diem.  Schindler said costs differ by County.
Amundson noted the Douglas, Lancaster and Sarpy County Boards had discussed
having a “common voice” in per diem discussions with the State. 

Melissa Hood, Administrative Aide, YSC, said the State agreed to pay $56,000 in billings
in October and denied payment for about $83,000.  In November, $62,000 in billings
was approved and $52,000 denied.  She said the State is projected to approve $50,000
and deny $40,000 in December, based on that history.  Schindler said the amounts in
question involve youth that were under the supervision of Juvenile Probation and
violated conditional release.

MOTION: Schorr moved and Amundson seconded to begin contract negotiations
with the State using a per diem rate of $304, with an effective date of
February 1, 2014.  

Page 9



There was consensus to use the same per diem rate for the contract counties.

ROLL CALL:  Schorr, Amundson, Smoyer, Raybould and Hudkins voted aye.  Motion
carried 5-0.

 4) LEGISLATIVE BILL (LB) 561 COSTS - Sheli Schindler, Youth Services
Center (YSC) Director; Sara Hoyle, Juvenile Justice Coordinator; Lori
Griggs, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, presented Legislative Bill (LB)
464 Talking Points and LB 464 Section 16 Payment (Exhibits B and C).  NOTE: LB 464
is the vehicle to making changes to 2013 Session LB 561 (Changed provisions and
transferred responsibilities regarding the juvenile justice system).

Brittany Behrens, Deputy County Attorney, noted there is no clarity on who is
responsible for costs.

Sara Hoyle, Juvenile Justice Coordinator, discussed community aid funding, noting the
County received approximately $500,000 of the $5,000,000 the State received to help
cover costs related to implementation of LB 561 provisions.  She indicated plans to ask
for an additional $5,000,000 but said it was not clear in the bill that the funds would be 
in addition to the $5,000,000 the State already received.  Hoyle said further clarification
of the term “evidence-based” is also needed.   Schindler added they are also seeking
clarification on who is responsible for transport.

Pat Condon, Chief Deputy County Attorney, said his office also has concerns regarding
the bill, including the requirement that all filings be in Juvenile Court, with the
exception of Class I felonies.  He said a meeting to discuss concerns is scheduled with
Senator Krist, who is “carrying” the legislation.

There was consensus to have Schindler and Joe Kelly, County Attorney, provide
testimony at the Judiciary Committee’s hearing on the bill.  It was also suggested that
the Board and Nebraska Association of County Officials (NACO) have representatives at
the hearing.

Discussion also took place regarding Juvenile Probation’s costs as a result of
implementation of LB 561.  Hoyle said there is $50,000 in community aid funding to
help cover the cost of additional office space and computer equipment for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2014.  She said she has also submitted a request for an additional
$50,000 in community aid for the upcoming fiscal year to help cover office space costs.

Page 10



 5) JUVENILE PROBATION OFFICE SPACE - Lori Griggs, Chief Juvenile
Probation Officer

Lori Griggs, Chief Juvenile Probation Officer, said she would still like to move the
Juvenile Drug Court Coordinator and Probation Officer from the County-City Building 
to the Heritage Square Office Building (421 South 9th Street) where Juvenile Probation
is located (see January 23, 2014 Staff Meeting minutes for discussion of this issue). 
She said they could also move the juvenile probation officers who are located in the K
Street Building (440 South 8th Street) over to the Heritage Square Office Building.

Griggs also reported that the State has absorbed two positions (home detention
officers) back into its budget, which will save the County $40,000 to $50,000 over the
next six months.  It was noted the County may have to pick that cost back up at some
point or there could be an increase in detention costs.

 6) COMMUNITY MENTAL HEALTH CENTER (CMHC) TRANSITION
COSTS - Gwen Thorpe, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Interim
Administrator

Gwen Thorpe, Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) Interim Administrator,
reported several retirements are anticipated in the next couple months as services
transition to new providers.  Meyer said he had planned to transfer $1,630,000 from
the Manor Fund to CMHC and the Crisis Center.  He also set up a transfer of $830,000
to cover compensated absences.

Thorpe also reported the following:

• A contract nurse will remain for a period of time after the transition of
core services to Lutheran Family Services (LFS) to finish up the patient
assistance medication program.  Staff at The Heather (a community
transition program) and Dr. Sanat Roy, Psychiatrist and Medical Director,
will also remain for a period of time.

• CMHC was behind on billing (Aging Report) and one additional staff
member will remain for one more pay period to assist in getting in it
caught up.  It is estimated that $150,000 or more will need to be written
off as uncollectible.

• There has been a significant amount of overtime as staff tries to get
caught up on their documentation.

• County will contract with Seim Johnson, LLP for Medicare cost report
(estimated cost of $3,500).

• Cleanup of the facility and apartments used for the independent living
program is being done with the assistance of a contracted mover (cost of
$2,700).

Schorr asked how funds the County set aside for the transition have been utilized. 
Meyer said none of the funds have been expended.  He said LFS submitted one request

Page 11



for funds, which was referred to Region V Systems.  NOTE: The Board had agreed to
make $500,000 available, for each of two (2) years, beginning July 1, 2013, for the
transition (see November 29, 2012 Staff Meeting minutes).  Region V Systems
subsequently agreed to pay the first $100,000 of transition costs. 

Thorpe also discussed the County’s contract with the University of Nebraska for externs
(PhD students) who are working at CMHC.  She said CenterPointe, which is taking over
The Heather, is not interested in utilizing the extern that is working with that program
and LFS, which is taking over the core services, does not need the three externs who
are working with those services but will retain them if the Board would like them to do
so.  Raybould asked Thorpe to check on how long the externs have been doing their
clinicals at CMHC.

 7) BIENNIAL (TWO-YEAR) BUDGET 

Meyer said state statutes currently do not allow biennial budgets for counties.  Smoyer
noted NACO is interested in looking at this issue.  Meyer said he is not sure how the
County would address certain funding issues if it moved to a biennial budget.  He felt it
is less of a problem for the City, which has moved to a biennial budget, because it can
rely on sales tax revenue.  Halstead said Steve Hubka, City Finance Director, could
speak to the Board about the pros and cons of having a biennial budget.  She said from
a director’s perspective, there are efficiencies by not having to prepare an annual
budget.  It has also forced departments to plan further out.

 8) LUNCH

The meeting was recessed at 12:02 p.m. and resumed at 12:33 p.m.

 9) PUBLIC DEFENDER FELONY ATTORNEY - Joe Nigro, Deputy Public
Defender

Joe Nigro, Deputy Public Defender, discussed the Public Defender’s request for one
additional felony attorney, noting since 2009 there has been an average increase of 9%
per year in the number of felony cases assigned to the Public Defender’s Office.  He
said 133 felony cases were assigned to private attorneys during the first six months of
this fiscal year because of the Public Defender’s case overload.  Nigro said 69 overload
cases are considered the break even point for the County to add a staff attorney.  He
said a staff felony attorney can handle approximately 155 felony cases per year, under
caseload standards, and estimated the County would save $60,000 per year by adding
a new attorney versus paying assigned counsel.  Nigro said the will continue to monitor
the case load growth to see if there is justification for adding another felony attorney in
2015. 

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Amundson seconded to authorize the Public Defender
to hire an additional felony attorney, effective July 1, 2014.  Raybould,
Smoyer, Amundson, Schorr and Hudkins voted aye.  Motion carried 5-0.

Page 12



Nigro discussed the need for an additional juvenile attorney, noting the three attorneys
who are assigned to the Juvenile Court have to cover four courtrooms which  doesn’t
leave them adequate time to read reports and meet with clients. 

Nigro also addressed technology needs, explaining they would like to institute a four-
year replacement plan for computers (cost of $12,000 each fiscal year) and make
modifications to their case management information system (cost of $5,000 for each of
the next two fiscal years).  

RETURNING TO LEGISLATIVE BILL (LB) 561 COSTS 

Nigro said he has a good relationship with Senator Ashford and said he would be willing
to discuss the County’s concerns regarding LB 464 with him.  NOTE: Senator Ashford
introduced the bill.

10) FUTURE FUNDING ISSUES AND PROJECTIONS

Meyer discussed the following documents:

• Lancaster County Levy Projections (Page 2-25)
• Ongoing Budget Issues (Page 2-26)

Schorr requested information regarding workers’ compensation claims at CMHC.

Discussion took place regarding the Bridge and Road Fund.  Meyer noted he currently
transfers about $6,300,000 out of the fund.  Pam Dingman, County Engineer, said there
are six bridge structures in the County that need attention.  Some will need work this
fiscal year and work on the others will be delayed until next fiscal year.  She said they
are also researching new methods of cleaning bridges in the hopes that will extend
their life.    

In response to a question from Hudkins, Dingman said her initial assessment is that
there is a 10-year backlog of paving projects, adding some plans may no longer be
valid due to changes in regulations.  Hudkins asked whether she has staff that can
address the priorities or will they need to contract for engineering work.  Dingman said
she believes her staff can “take us where we need to go” but said they will need to look
at additional engineering software and equipment in next year’s budget.  She said their
Global Positioning Satellite (GPS) equipment is outdated and has no trade-in value. 
Dingman noted Douglas and Sarpy County have started doing stakeless paving
(everything is modeled in the computer and sent to the field in an electronic file that is
uploaded to the construction equipment) and said that is the direction her department
will strive to move.  Dingman said she has studied the department’s budget and has
concerns about how encumbered funds have been tracked.

Brief discussion took place regarding CMHC transition costs with consensus to limit the
$500,000 transition funding to one year.

Page 13



Troy Hawk, Clerk of the District Court, gave an overview of his current year’s budget
request (to cover cost of living pay raises and an additional employee approved by the
Board) and future expenditures (office equipment).  Thorpe said CMHC may have
equipment his department could use.  He also discussed jury space needs. 

Jennifer Kulwicki, District Court Administrator, discussed future expenditures: 1) Outfit
the new judge’s chambers; 2) Update computer equipment and software to address
compatibility issues; and 3) Expand use of video teleconferencing (VTC).

Coordinating the VTC systems with law enforcement systems and possible expansion to
state correctional facilities were also discussed.

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, addressed her department’s
budget issues: 1) Vehicles; 2) Electronics; and 3) Computer Equipment. 

Judy Halstead, Lincoln-Lancaster County Health Department (LLCHD) Director,
discussed the steps LLCHD has taken to contain costs on the GA medical side,
referencing GA budget information on Page 3-14 and Lincoln-Lancaster County Health
Department, Projected Costs for General Assistance: Primary Care Medical Program,
July 1, 2013 Through June 30, 2014 (Exhibit D).  She said the dental services hours for
emergency GA patients have been expanded but she is proposing a slight reduction in
the budget because some of those individuals can pay on a sliding fee.  Halstead said if
LB 887, the Medicaid expansion bill passes, GA in its current form will go away and
patients will be transitioned to Medicaid or the health insurance exchange.  She added
if LB 887 doesn’t pass, it may be less expensive for the County to have these
individuals enroll through the health insurance exchange and the County pay the
difference.  NOTE: The County Attorney’s Office is researching that option.  Halstead
said another option to explore is whether it would be cheaper to have a not-for-profit
provider serve  these patients.  She noted LCCHD provides services to the County that
another provider would want to be paid for, like the 24-hour on-call service.  The other
cautionary note is that due to the Affordable Care Act (ACA), the pharmaceutical
companies may not continue medication assistance programs at their current level,
which will significantly increase the County’s costs.

There was consensus to authorize Halstead to continue to explore the options she
outlined.

Meyer noted the County could be replacing at least three department heads in the next
year: Doug Ahlberg, Emergency Management Director; Kit Boesch, Human Services
Administrator; and Gary Chalupa, Veterans Service Officer/General Assistance Director.

Meyer also discussed Beginning Deficit (2013-14) (Exhibit E), noting there may not be
the ability this year to take some of the measures that were used to makeup the
budget shortfall last year. 

Page 14



Schorr suggested proceeds from the sale of several County properties that may be
declared surplus property could be used to help makeup the budget shortfall and help
fund renovation of the former jail facility (605 South 10th Street).

Schorr exited the meeting at 1:52 p.m. to attend a Nebraska Association of County
Officials (NACO) Board of Directors Meeting, noting they will be discussing legislation
that could impact Lancaster County.

11) FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2014-2015 BUDGET INSTRUCTION LETTER

There was consensus to not require a certain percentage reduction in department
budgets, rather to remind them of the budget situation.

Meyer projected the County will be facing a budget deficit of $8,000,000.

Smoyer exited the meeting at 2:01 p.m.

12) DEPARTMENT BUDGET HEARING SCHEDULE

There was general consensus to hold the agency budget hearings on Tuesday, May 20th

(1:30 p.m. to 5:00 p.m.) and Wednesday, May 21st (8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.).  

Smoyer returned to the meeting at 2:04 p.m.

There was also consensus to recommend eliminating the City-County Common Budget
Hearings.  

MOTION: Amundson moved and Smoyer seconded to recommend to the City that
the City-County Common Budget Hearings be eliminated and the City
Finance Director and County Budget and Fiscal Officer be asked to share
their budget information.  Smoyer, Amundson, Raybould and Hudkins
voted aye. Schorr was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0. 

13) STRATEGIC PLANNING

There was consensus to schedule discussion of strategic planning with the Management
Team and to work with the Personnel Department in developing a Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) for a facilitator.

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to request a legal opinion on how
reaching a population threshold of 300,000 will impact the County.

Raybould suggested work with the Legislature to “bump up” the population threshold.

The maker of the motion and the seconder withdrew their motion.

Page 15



The Board directed Eagan to work with the County Attorney’s Office on the population
threshold issue.

14) BUDGET WRAP-UP

Meyer said he will disseminate budget instructions to the departments.

15) ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Smoyer moved and Raybould seconded to adjourn the meeting at 2:14
p.m.  Raybould, Amundson, Smoyer and Hudkins voted aye.  Schorr was
absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

NOTE: See Exhibit F for documents referred to during the meeting. 

Page 16


































































































































































































































































